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The Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District hereby issues this Addendum No. 2 to the 
above referenced Request for Proposal.  Except as modified below, all other terms and 
conditions shall remain in effect.  Strikethrough texts are words deleted from original 
RFP text and bold/italicized/underlined text are changes to original RFP text. 
 
 
Amendments to Face Page of the Request for Proposal  
 

NONE (Proposals due June 10, 2015 at 4:00 P.M. Pacific Daylight Time, not at 10:00 a.m. 

as stated on the Website) 
 
Amendments to General Conditions, Instructions and Information for Offeror 
 
 NONE  
 
Clarifications Regarding (and Amendment to) the Special Conditions 

 
 
Question #1:  On page 5 of the RFP, under Section 20, Subsection B, Paragraph 1; 

Annual Gross Receipts, solicited firms are asked to disclose “The firm’s 
gross annual receipts for the most recent three (3) years.” We are a 
privately held company that is financially solvent, but do not wish to 
disclose such financial information unless and until we are identified as a 
finalist, due to the risk that such confidential information would then 
become generally known to the public. Would our initial failure to provide 
such revenue information disqualify us from further consideration? 

 
Answer:  The District is required to make a basic determination of 

“responsibility” (i.e. vendor suitability and fitness) before awarding 
a contract. A critical aspect of such basic suitability is a prospective 
vendor’s financial condition. If this cannot be determined from a 
candidate’s initial response to a formal solicitation, the District 
reserves the right to consider such response “non-responsive”. 
That said, the District can provide assurances that any sensitive 
information clearly designated as “confidential” will be treated 
accordingly. 

 
Question #2:  What is the anticipated or targeted daily ridership for this service during 

the pilot?  
 
Answer:  The targeted daily ridership is 200 passengers per day. 
 
Question #3:  In the referenced Board Report, the total cost is anticipated to be 

$170,000 to $185,000, with the anticipated software cost to be $17,000 to 
$32,000. We would like to request a detailing of the anticipated costs 
addressing items such as vehicle operating costs, vendor costs etc. 

 
Answer:  Aside from hourly labor rates and reimbursable expenses like travel, 

this RFP is solely for the scheduling software, hardware (tablets for 
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vehicles) and support. Vehicle and operator costs are not part of the 
RFP. 

 
Question #4:  We would like to request clarification regarding clause 36 in the RFP: 

does this mean that this RFP cannot have any software license fees or 
royalties? Is it purely only labour, time and materials? Can materials be 
software fees? 

 

Answer:   Yes, there can be software and/or licensing fees. 

 
 As such, Section 36 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Amendment:  “36. CONTRACT TYPE 

 

This RFP shall result in a time and materials based service contract 

that may include software royalty and/or licensing 

and/or hosting fees.”  

 

Question #5: Is this RFP only available to American contractors? Are Canadian 
companies allowed to bid for this contract? 

Answer: This RFP is not restricted to American contractors. Canadian 
companies are welcome to submit proposals. 

Question #6: Is the District open to a royalty fee per ticket sold or ride provided, instead 
of a fixed software license fee? 

Answer:  While the District had not previously considered such a 
compensation model, it remains open to proposals. That said, 
accounting issues may render such a proposal difficult to 
implement.    

 
Question #7:  Would a start-up company with sufficient resources and expertise to 

complete the project qualify to win this RFP? 
 
Answer:  See Answer to Question #1 above. If the District, in the exercise of 

due diligence, is able to independently confirm that a company has 
sufficient resources and expertise to complete the project, the fact 
that such a firm is a “start-up” would not disqualify it from receiving 
a contract award. 

 
Clarifications Regarding (and Amendment to) the Cost Proposal 
 
Question #8:  What is the fare structure for this service? How much will passengers pay 

per ride? 
 
Answer:  The fare will be the same as a regular AC Transit fare - $2.10. 
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Question #9:  What is the current cost recovery ratio of the fixed line service? What is 
the desired or targeted cost recovery ratio for the envisioned demand 
responsive service? 

 

Answer: AC Transit’s fare box recovery is around 20%. It is hoped the 
demand responsive service will perform as well or better. 

 

Question #10: Is the District open to a royalty fee per ticket sold or ride provided, instead 
of a fixed software license fee? 

  
Answer:  While the District had not previously considered such a 

compensation model, it remains open to proposals. That said, 
accounting issues may render such a proposal difficult to 
implement.   

 
Question #11:  Please explain how respondents should present the overall project cost, 

and specifically how to use the cost proposal form included in the RFP 
package for this purpose, as it contains no line items for software costs, 
hardware costs, hosting fees, or anything other than direct labor costs. 
How is the total project cost proposal to be presented in the respondent’s 
submitted proposal given that the items in the included cost proposal form 
are only a subset of the total project cost? Is AC Transit willing to provide 
a new cost proposal form that is more typical of a software procurement 
project and includes specific provisions for software and hardware and 
hosting and related costs? 

 
Answer:  Yes; AC Transit is willing to provide a new cost proposal form that is 

more typical of a software procurement project and includes 
specific provisions for software and hardware and hosting and 
related costs. 

 
  As such,  

 

Amendment:  Exhibit A – Cost Proposal Form on Page 37 of the RFP 

is hereby replaced with the spreadsheet designated 

as “Exhibit A to this Addendum No. 2”. 

 
Clarifications Regarding  the Scope of Services 
 
Question #12:  From the Scope of Work, Page 39, first paragraph: Could you provide 

more clarity around wanting an on-demand service, yet having a boarding 
every 30 minutes at the Ardenwood Park and Ride stop? 

 
Answer: It is intended that one or two stops within the flex service zone be 

“scheduled points.” At these locations, passengers can board or 
off-board the bus at a scheduled time every 30 minutes. The preset 
time makes coordinating transfers to other routes more convenient. 
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If passengers are boarding at a schedule point, they will still have to 
book their drop off location, and may not be accommodated on the 
first bus that arrives. 

 
Question #13: From the Scope of Work Page 39, under "Goals":  Could you provide 

more clarity for the request to "integrate on-demand trip planning and 
technology into AC Transit service delivery"? 

 
Answer: It is a general goal of the RFP to integrate a new type of service 

delivery model into AC Transit’s service. However, the “on-demand 
trip planning” component will be limited to the Route 275 pilot and 
service outlined in the RFP. 

 
Question #14:  Can AC Transit provide an actual map of the service area? The 

description in the Scope/Statement of Work is somewhat helpful but 
doesn’t specify what the precise service area will be. 

 
Answer: See the map attached to this Addendum announcement. The flex 

service area is approximately 5.5 square miles. 
 
Question #15:  The Scope/Statement of Work indicates that there are approximately 50 

stops, but on the AC Transit web site it specifies 39 stops in each 
direction of Route 275, for a total of 78. Many stops appear to be on 
opposite sides of the street at the same 2 intersecting streets. With the 
new service, would such opposite side of the street stops be considered a 
single stop? We are trying to determine how the number of 50 stops was 
arrived at. 

 
Answer: The purpose of the pilot is to provide flex service to the Route 275 

stops where AC Transit does not have other frequent service, with 
the idea being that passengers can use the flex service to transfer to 
and from frequent service. There are 53 Route 275 stop locations 
that don’t coincide with other frequent service (a bus at least every 
15 minutes). In this scenario, Route 275 stops on Fremont Blvd and 
Decoto Rd are excluded. In the map referenced above, the stops on 
Fremont Blvd are included bringing the total number of stops 
serviced to 63. The District will accept either configuration.  

 
The included stop locations are in both directions, on both sides of 
the street. AC Transit will consider stop consolidation if the 
proposer feels that a single pick up or drop off location at 
intersections with two stops would suffice.  

 
There are also 89 “out of service” stop locations in the flex zone 
boundary. These may be reopened to add additional pick up and 
drop off locations in future phases of the project. The requirement of 
the RFP, however, is to at a minimum serve the Route 275 stops 
contained in the boundary.  
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Question #16: Does AC Transit have the data for Route 275 in a GTFS format at some 

web-accessible location where it can be downloaded? 

 
Answer:  Yes: http://www.actransit.org/planning-focus/data-resource-center/  
 
Question #17: Is it AC Transit’s intent that the selected proposer will work closely with 

AC Transit staff to design the details of the service and the manner in 

which the software system will make the service design workable? Is this 

one of the purposes of Task 2? Or does the agency already have a strong 

conception of the details of the service design?  

 
Answer: Yes, the intent of Task 2 is that the selected proposer will work 

closely with AC Transit staff to design the details of the service and 
the manner in which the software system will make the service 
design workable.  

 
Question #18:  We are trying to understand what would be included in Task 1, Develop a 

Work Plan, which is not already covered by Tasks 2 thru 7. Or is Task 1 
simply to provide an overall project plan which will include (and subsume) 
the more detailed plan elements such as Task 5, Develop an Installation 
Plan? 

 
Answer: That is correct. The purpose of Task 1 is to develop an overall 

project plan. The more detailed elements required for each 
successive task can be developed and presented at the time that 
specific task is to be completed. 

 
Question #19:  On Page 40 of the Scope/Statement of Work, it is indicated that AC 

Transit wishes to minimize the driver’s interaction with the mobile 
application on the tablet computer yet also accommodate spontaneous 
boardings at schedule points. One method for handling spontaneous 
boardings would be for the driver to select the boarding customer’s 
destination from a “filtered” drop-down list of possible stops that are 
upcoming on the vehicle tour (stops that the vehicle has already passed 
on its tour would be filtered out). Would this level of driver interaction be 
acceptable to AC Transit? 

 
Answer: Yes, a filtered drop down list could work. However, it should be 

noted that any additional operator requirements will need to be 
approved by the Operators Union.  

  
Question #20:  What is the rationale for leaving Route 275 in place during the first 3 

months of the pilot project? This would appear to have the potential to 
create substantial confusion for the riding public and possibly compromise 
the prospects for the Flex service. We can imagine riders making 
reservations to be picked up at a bus stop and then boarding the fixed 
route bus if it appears at the stop prior to the Flex service vehicle—or 
vice-versa. We are concerned that this will create operational and 

http://www.actransit.org/planning-focus/data-resource-center/
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consumer service issues and are interested in how AC Transit would 
expect the software system provided by the vendor to deal with this. 

 
Answer: The duplication of service is a valid concern, and the District does 

not expect the software system to handle this issue in any particular 
way other than it would normally do for “no-shows.” The rationale 
for keeping Route 275 in parallel service for the initial three months 
is simply that the District does not want to eliminate Route 275 
service without testing, marketing, and operating a workable flex 
service replacement.  

 
Amendments to the Attachments 

 
 NONE 
 
 
Amendments to the Sample Contract 
 
 NONE 
 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 2 


